## MINUTES **OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE**

#### Monday 5 October 2015

Councillor Viv McCrossen (Chair)

Councillor Gary Gregory Councillor Marje Paling Councillor Bruce Andrews Councillor Colin Powell Councillor Sandra Barnes Councillor Alex Scroggie Councillor John Truscott Councillor Kevin Doyle

Councillor Paul Feeney

Apologies for absence: Councillor Tammy Bisset. Councillor Helen

Greensmith and Councillor Stephen Poole

Officers in Attendance: H Barrington, H Lee, A Callingham, D Jayne and

D Wakelin

Guests in Attendance Youth Councillors: Harry Gabb, Ashela Pringle,

> George Sullivan. Paddy Tipping, Police and Crime Commissioner, Superintendent Mark Holland Councillor D Ellis, Portfolio Holder Public Protection.

#### 86 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS.

#### 87 TO APPROVE, AS A CORRECT RECORD, THE MINUTES OF THE **MEETING HELD ON 20 JULY 2015**

#### RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the above meeting, having been circulated, after amendment to include Councillor John Truscott as present, be approved as a correct record.

#### 88 **DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.**

None.

#### 89 **QUARTER 1 PERFORMANCE**

The Council Solicitor and Monitoring Officer Helen Barrington provided an overview of Quarter 1 2015/2016 performance which was presented to Cabinet on 24th September.

- The data in this report refers to the first quarter of the financial year only and is expected that performance targets identified for the year will be met
- In the main performance at the end of quarter 1 is positive but largely below target. 10 of the 29 performance indicators that are appropriate for quarterly monitoring are on target and of the remainder, two are at amber status and 15 are red
- Targets have yet to be set for two indicators relating to crime within the South Nottinghamshire Community Safety Partnership
- Quarter 1 targets are often behind, particular areas which are below target are:
  - Number of visits to leisure centres
  - Preventing Homelessness average time to process applications
  - Preventing Homelessness provision of support and advice
  - Percentage of fly tipping incidents removed within 2 working days. There has been an unusually high number of fly tipping incidents reported, the majority of which relate to the dumping of builders rubble. Prosecutions of both offenders and householders are undertaken if there is sufficient evidence. Officers report incidents and elected members are encouraged to report any occurrences they see.
- Currently, all 63 actions are either on target or completed.

#### **RESOLVED:**

To note the Quarter 1 performance information.

# 90 SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2015/2016

# Scrutiny Reviews 2014/2015 Transport Links to, and within Gedling Borough

The Members Services Officer informed Members about the responses and comments received from the Portfolio Holder, Notts. County Council, Nottingham City Transport and Trent Barton. Members of the Committee, and the three members of the Youth Council who had been part of the working group, were invited to comment on the responses.

Recommendation 7 included a response from the Commercial Manager, Nottingham City Transport regarding working on marketing campaigns for young people. Members of the Youth Council indicated that they would like to take up this offer. They also asked for some clarification regarding the response from Notts. County Council to Recommendation 5 regarding the age limit for statutory concessionary fares.

The Chair thanked the three members of the Youth Council for attending the meeting and their valuable input into the working group.

## 2015/2016 Work Programme

# 1. Scrutiny at committee

# • Programme of Portfolio Holding holding to account

Members were informed that Councillor David Ellis, Portfolio Holder for Public Protection, would be attending the next meeting of the committee to discuss and respond to questions on the responsibilities within his Portfolio. Members were invited to identify areas of performance they would like to consider at the next meeting.

After discussion areas agreed for examination:

- Radicalisation
- Safeguarding of vulnerable adults
- Emergency planning in relation to the provision of grit bins
- Progress of the animal welfare policy

Members were reminded of the importance of submitting questions in advance of the meeting. None executive members will also be asked to suggest questions for the Portfolio Holder.

# Bonington Theatre

After considering the written report and discussion it was decided that a working group would be set up to look at this report and additional reports to determine if this is an issue that they would like to examine further in further detail.

Councillor Gregory will chair this group and Councillor S Barnes, M Paling and B Andrews will be involved in this review.

#### Recording of Meetings

The Members' Service Officer gave a verbal update on the progress of the recommendation to introduce a system of audio recording and webcasting which went to Cabinet on the 24<sup>th</sup> September. Cabinet has agreed to adopt the recommendation for Council and Planning Committee meetings. The success of this will be reviewed after 6 months when consideration will be given to extending it to other committees including Cabinet.

# • Information Requested

Members were informed that information regarding the Planning Improvement Plan and report would be going to the Planning Committee on 14<sup>th</sup> October. An update will be available at the next Overview Committee meeting in December.

## 2. Scrutiny in working groups

#### Smoking and Obesity working group

The Committee were informed that the first meeting of the working group had taken place and that the review would be divided into two separate sections with obesity the initial focus. Representatives from Public Health attended the meeting and presented data regarding the prevalence and growing problem of excessive weight and the work undertaken to help people lose weight and maintain a healthy lifestyle.

#### **RESOLVED:**

- note the responses to the Transport Links, to and within the Borough scrutiny review recommendations and receive an update on the progress of Recommendation 7 and clarification on Recommendation 5
- II. agreed the four areas in the Public Protection Portfolio identified for examination at the next meeting
- III. to set up a working group to explore the possibility of reviewing the Bonington Theatre

- IV. note the Cabinet response to the recommendation regarding the recording of meetings and receive a progress report on the 6 month Cabinet review of the success of the system
- V. receive information regarding the Planning Advisory Report at the December meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
- VI. Note the information on the progress of the Smoking and Obesity working group.

#### 91 SCRUTINY OF CRIME AND DISORDER

David Ellis, Portfolio Holder, David Wakelin, Corporate Director, Andy Callingham, Service Manager Public Protection and David Jayne, Community Safety and Safeguarding Manager attended the meeting to inform members about the work of the Crime and Disorder Partnership and provide essential background information about how the partnership works, and what it does, to enable them to determine issues for examination at the December meeting.

Local authorities and the police to work in partnership with other agencies to develop and implement a strategy for tackling crime and disorder in their area, working to reduce crime and antisocial behaviour and fear of crime. Members were informed that the South Notts. Crime and Disorder partnership is made up of Broxtowe, Gedling and Rushcliffe and membership includes the three local authorities the Police, the fire and rescue authority, the clinical commissioning group. Ruth Hyde CEX Broxtowe is chair of the strategic group, and David Wakelin chair of the executive group which has responsibility for managing performance. The Partnership has three strategic themes:

- Early intervention
- Prevention of offending
- And increasing public confidence

Allied to this are programme groups for:

- Targeted support and Youth Justice Partnership
- Substance misuse
- Reducing re-offending
- Hate crime
- Domestic violence.

Reducing crime and anti-social behaviour is not just the Police and local authority working together but a whole range of organisations including community partners. Members learnt about locality working and how a whole range of partners including the local authority, housing providers, youth services, children's centres and schools work together in a number of ways. Information and data analysis enable focused interventions in high crime and antisocial behaviour areas which can include targeting offenders, improving physical environments, installing CCTV and supporting victims. Netherfield is a Partnership Plus which attracts extra resources to combat high crime and anti-social behaviour levels.

Gedling ASB/Vulnerable Persons Panel is chaired by the Community Safety and Safeguarding Manager. Referrals are taken from a wide range of agencies for vulnerability, including hate crime and repeat victimisation and there is a multiagency response for victims and families. These groups work with victims and look at what makes people vulnerable, one of the key partners in this is the Mental Health from the County Council.

The ASB and Policing Act allow 6 powers to be used:

- Injunctions to prevent annoyance and nuisance— none have been served as has not been necessary
- Criminal behaviour orders 3 served by the Police
- Dispersal Powers 4 undertaken by the Police
- Community Protection Notices 25 notices, possibly noise nuisance that has escalated
- Public Space Orders none served
- Closure Orders none served.

There is also a community trigger where 3 cases of ASB in the last 6 months can result in the case being reviewed to see if they meet the threshold for action. None of these have been issued.

Performance in Gedling on the whole is good and crime figures are falling. Gedling performed better than the Community Safety Partnership average for all the main crime groups over the last 3 month rolling period  $-2^{nd}$  best for all crime. Performance for all crime types with the exception of robbery (placed  $8^{th}$ ) over the last 12 months  $-2^{nd}$  for all crime and best performer for criminal damage. Areas of concern and where the partnership is not performing well are dwelling robbery, robbery, vehicle crime and violence against a person with injury.

Overall crime 2015-2016 year to date is 7.7%down. This has been bought about by sharing information, knowledge and expertise.

Developments in the future to support and enhance this work include:

- A Safer Nottingham Community Safety Partnership strategic away day: a partnership review – October 2015
- Implementation of a new Family Service November 2015
- Improvements to Safeguarding procedures to include licensing
- The effects of the Care Act 2014 on the Vulnerable Persons Panel improving work with local people identified to the district community safety partnerships as vulnerable to, for example, antisocial behaviour and hate crime.

Members listened to the information provided and asked a number of questions relating to the presentation.

Members asked for clarification about how some of the figures were generated particularly in relation to violence against the person. They were informed that the increase in incidents could in part be due to occurrences formerly being recorded as one incident; now each person involved is logged as a separate incident. Concern was raised about how the partnership works with the City and numbers of perpetrators travelling from the City to Gedling to undertake crime. informed there is a successful working partnership with the City but improved sharing of information and good practice would enhance this Collaborative work is undertaken regarding domestic relationship. violence as the agencies involved tend to work across boundaries. Members were particularly concerned about the fall in the number of domestic violence incidents reported and this is one area where they would consider an increase in reported incidents as a positive. The problem of policing legal highs was also discussed.

Members were reminded that this presentation was to enable them to consider which issues they would focus on at the next meeting when they will be scrutinising the work of the CRDP. Domestic violence was highlighted as one area of concern, Members will be asked to submit other areas for examination in advance of the meeting.

#### **RESOLVED:**

Request information regarding the recording of domestic violence incidents and the work undertaken by the Partnership to support victims and survivors

#### 92 POLICE COMMUNITY SUPPORT OFFICER REDUCTIONS

The Chair welcomed Paddy Tipping, Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Superintendent Mark Holland and invited Mr Tipping to give an overview of the reduction in the number of Police Community Support Officers.

A report which informed the Police and Crime Panel about a petition primarily organised by Unison regarding the proposed reductions was circulated.

Paddy Tipping then presented an overview of the scale and explained the need to make the reductions. Even with the reduction of 70 Nottinghamshire is still well above the national average for numbers of PCSOs and all parts of the County will have access to a neighbourhood policing team which will include PCSOs. The decision to reduce the number of has been driven entirely by the tough financial climate, Nottinghamshire Police has had to make savings of £45 million pounds over the last three years, last year £11 million was saved and there may be a need to save even more after the comprehensive spending review in November. It is envisaged that between 2010 and 2020 Nottinghamshire Police will have lost 50% of its Government Grant. Funding for the police is made up of 70% government grant and 30% council tax. As a consequence of these reductions a review and reconfiguration of services has been required. Approximately 80% of the Police budget is spent on officers and staff and it has been necessary to look at all staffing to identify where reductions can be made. Nottinghamshire is currently not recruiting officers and as officers leave and retire this could lead to a reduction of up to 110 posts next year. Other staff reductions at senior level, including assistant Chief Constables and Chief Superintendents, the closure of front counters and changes in back office services have also been made.

The need to make budget reductions has underlined the necessity to concentrate resources in areas of high crime. Areas that have low crime rates will have a reduced number of PCSO's; areas of high crime will get more. Deployment of officers is the responsibility of the Chief Constable.

## Maximising efficiencies includes:

- a focus on mental health. From February this year no children
  with a mental health issue have been taken into custardy this has
  be rolled out to include adults from the first of October. This is
  supported by partnership work with other agencies to achieve
  this for example a community psychiatric nurse accompanying
  police officers to incidents.
- retraining of backroom staff to identify priority telephone calls and those which are relevant for the police action. Not all crime incidents need a visit and it is important to establish early during reporting if a visit is required.

- response officers spending less time in custardy suites prison handler roles now undertake this role.
- allocating where there is demand, some neighbourhood teams may cover larger areas where crime levels are low
- generally local beat meetings will be maintained however they may be less frequent in rural areas
- sharing of back office functions and looking at joint procurement with other forces.

Resources will be deployed to areas of greatest need, responding to areas where demand is greatest. Taken as a whole there has been an 8% reduction in crime and anti-social behaviour. The growth in child sexual exploitation and fewer reported incidence of violence requires reprioritising of resources to meet need. In conclusion the there is still a commitment to neighbourhood policing and by looking at prioritising resources and maximising efficiencies all parts of Gedling will still have access to a neighbourhood police unit.

Members were concerned that these efficiencies and fall in crime figures could result in greater budget cuts but were informed that 70% of the grant money is distributed by complex formulas driven by levels of crime and this would not happen.

#### **RESOLVED:**

- I. To thank the Police and Crime Commissioner and Superintendent Mark Holland for attending the meeting
- II. To note the information provided.

#### 93 ANY OTHER ITEM WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT.

None.

The meeting finished at 7.30 pm

Signed by Chair: Date: